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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, ClVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. CENT 85-138-M
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 41-00010- 05502
CAPI TOL AGGREGATES, | NC., Capitol Cenent Pl ant
RESPONDENT
DEC!I SI ON
Appear ances: James L. Manzanares, Esqg., Ofice of the

Solicitor, U S. Departnent of Labor, Dallas,
Texas, for Petitioner

Ri chard L. Reed, Esg., Johnston, Ral ph, Reed &
Cone, San Antonio, Texas, for Respondent.

Bef or e: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Case

Thi s proceedi ng concerns civil penalty proposals filed by
the petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section 110(a)
of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. O
820(a), seeking civil penalty assessnents for three alleged
violations of certain mandatory safety standards found in Part
56, Title 30, Code of Federal Regul ations.

The respondent filed a tinmely answer and contest, subpoenas
were issued, and pursuant to notice the case was heard in San
Ant oni o, Texas, on February 25, 1986.

| ssue

The issue in this case is whether the respondent viol ated
the cited mandatory safety standards, and if so, the appropriate
civil penalties which should be assessed for the violations in
guestion. Additional issues raised by the parties are identified
and di scussed in the course of this decision
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Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, Pub. L.
95A164, 30 U.S.C. 801 et seq.

2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U. S.C. [0820(i).
3. Commission Rules, 20 C.F.R [2700.1 et seq.
Sti pul ations

The parties agreed that the respondent’'s Capitol Cenent
Plant is a "mne" as that termis defined by the Act, and that
the respondent and the plant in question are subject to MSHA' s
enforcenent jurisdiction as well as the jurisdiction of the Mne
Saf ety and Heal th Revi ew conm ssi on

The parties agreed that at all times relevant to this
proceedi ng the respondent's plant worked 277,985 annua
man- hours, and that the corporate entity controlling the
operation of the plant worked 607,510 annual man-hours.

The parties agreed that the assessnent of the proposed civil
penalties for the citations in question will not adversely affect
the respondent's ability to continue in business.

The parties agreed that the respondent abated the citations
in question in good faith.

Exhi bit PA1 is an MSHA conputer print-out reflecting the
respondent's prior history of violations. The information
provided reflects that for the period February 21, 1983 to
February 20, 1985, the respondent had three assessed viol ations
for which it paid civil penalties totaling $60. For the period
prior to February 21, 1983, respondent had seven assessed
violations, and paid a civil penalty assessnment of $98 for one of
t he viol ati ons.

Di scussi on

The alleged violations in this case were all issued after an
MSHA fatality investigation at the respondent's plant. The facts
show that an intoxicated | aboratory technician enployed by the
respondent intentionally msused and inhal ed nitrous oxide gas
which resulted in his death. The all eged viol ations which were
i ssued are as foll ows:
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Section 104(a) "S & S" Citation No. 2231659, February 21
1985, cites an alleged violation of 30 C.F.R [56.20A1, and the
condition or practice is stated as foll ows:

A fatal accident occurred Novenber 24th, 1984, at about
0200 hours, when an enpl oyee was found on the fl oor
unconscious, in the main roomof the |aboratory. The
enpl oyee was pronounced dead at the hospita
approximately 1 hour |ater. The autopsy report showed
0.171 al cohol in the blood and nitrous oxide in the
bile due to intentional inhalation by the enpl oyee.

Section 104(a) "S & S" Gtation No. 2241817, March 13, 1985,
cites an alleged violation of 30 C F.R [56.18A2, and the
condition or practice is stated as foll ows:

A fatal accident was experienced on Novenber 24, 1984.
The operator had failed to cause safety and health
hazard i nspections of all work areas to be conducted
each shift. No persons were designated to conduct these
i nspections and record these findings. Conductance of
such inspections would have acted as a deterrent to the
apparent abuse of the industrial gas, N trous Oxide,
and the presence of workers under the influence of

al cohol at the mine site.

Section 104(a) "S & S" G tation No. 2241818, March 13, 1985,
cites an alleged violation of 30 C F.R [56.20A11, and the
condition or practice is stated as foll ows:

A fatal accident occurred on Novenber 24, 1984. There
had been no signs posted at the exterior |aboratory

i ndustrial gas supply and service area, or within the
| aboratory to warn enpl oyees of the nature of the
hazards invol ved and the protective action required.
H ghly conbust abl e, expl osi ve and asphyxi ati ng gases
were being routinely used in these areas.
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

Citation No. 2231659 - Fact of Violation

30 C.F.R [56.20A1, provides as follows: "Intoxicating
beverages and narcotics shall not be permtted or used in or
around mnes. Persons under the influence of alcohol or narcotics
shall not be permitted on the job."

The respondent denied that it permtted any person under the
i nfl uence of al cohol or narcotics on the job, or that
i ntoxi cating beverages and narcotics were permtted by the
respondent, or used in or around its mne

The inspector who issued the citation on February 21, 1985,
subsequently nodified it on April 23, 1985, and his nodification
states as foll ows:

The negligence * * * is reduced fromlow to none. The
conpany had done all that woul d be reasonably expected
of themto be required and not allow al cohol on the
property or drug useage by publishing safety rules

whi ch were printed and signed as to being read by the
victim

Petitioner's counsel noved to withdraw G tation No. 2231659
on the ground that the evidence will not support a violation of
the cited mandatory safety section 56.20A1. Counsel stated that
the petitioner cannot establish that the respondent permtted the
use of intoxicating beverages or narcotics on the job.

Petitioner's notion to withdraw its proposal for assessnent
of a civil penalty for Ctation No. 2231659, February 21, 1985,
30 C.F.R [56.20A1 |I'S GRANTED, and the citation IS VACATED

Citation No. 2241817 - Fact of Violation
30 C.F.R [56.18A2, provides as foll ows:

(a) A competent person designated by the operator shal
exam ne each working place at | east once each shift for
conditions which nmay adversely affect safety or health.

The operator shall pronptly initiate appropriate action
to correct such conditions.
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(b) A record that such exanm nations were conducted shal
be kept by the operator for a period of one year, and shall be
made available for review by the Secretary or his authorized
representative

The parties proposed to settle this violation by the
respondent agreeing to pay a civil penalty assessnent in the
amount of $168. The initial proposed "special assessment” was in
t he amount of $500.

In support of the reduction of the proposed civil penalty
assessnent, petitioner's counsel took into consideration the fact
that the respondent could not have reasonably foreseen that the
enpl oyee woul d have intentionally and voluntarily inhaled the
nitrous oxide kept in the plant |aboratory for the respondent's
| egitimate busi ness needs. Although counsel believed that he
could support a finding of high negligence because a daily
exam nation may have acted as a deterrent, he al so believed that
the gravity of the violation is less than originally assessed
because such an exam nation would not |ikely have prevented the
enpl oyee fromintentionally inhaling the nitrous oxide.

Petitioner's counsel confirned that the intentional act of
t he enpl oyee in question endangered only hinself and no other
m ners, and that the respondent has taken appropriate action to
i nsure or preclude future incidents of this kind.

After careful consideration of the argunents presented in
support of the proposed settlenent of the violation, | conclude
and find that it is reasonable and in the public interest, and IT
| S APPROVED. The citation IS AFFI RVED

The respondent's counsel stated that in agreeing to settle
the violations in question and to pay the agreed upon civil
penalty assessnents the respondent does not agree to liability
for the alleged violations, but has taken into consideration the
cost of further litigation

Citation No. 2241818 - Fact of Violation

30 C.F.R [56.20A11, provides as follows: "Areas where
heal th or safety hazards exist that are not imediately obvious
to enpl oyees shall be barricaded, or warning signs shall be
posted at all approaches. Warning signs shall be readily visible,
| egi bl e, and display the nature of the hazard and protective
action required.”
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The respondent agreed not to contest the citation further,
and agreed to make full paynent of the proposed civil penalty
assessnent of $168. | have considered this proposal as a
settl enent proposal, and with the agreenment of the petitioner,
and after consideration of the six statutory criteria found in
section 110(i) of the Act, | conclude it is in the public
interest, and I T IS APPROVED. The viol ation IS AFFI RVED.

CORDER

In view of the foregoing, Gtation No. 2231659, |S VACATED,
and the petitioner's civil penalty proposal |IS DI SM SSED. The
respondent 1S ORDERED to pay a civil penalty in the anount of
$168 for Citation No. 2241817, and a civil penalty in the anmount
of $168 for CGtation No. 2241818. Paynent is to be nmade to MSHA
within thirty (30) days of the date of this decision and order,
and upon recei pt of paynment, this case is dismssed.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



